Navigating the New Lease Accounting Standard Equipment Leasing and Finance Association February 2016





Table of Contents

IN	TRODUCTION	. 3	3
	Background	3	3
	What's new? What's not?	4	4
	What now?	4	4

A		. 5
	Full service lease treatment	. 6
	Sale leasebacks with purchase options	. 6
	Additional lessee issues	. 7
	Steps for lessees' accounting departments	. 7
	Impact on financials: FASB companies vs. IASB companies	. 8
	Lessee lease accounting issues with structuring ideas under FASB vs. IASB	. 9
	The lease vs. buy decision	10
	Impacts and strategies for lessees: lessor product and structuring opportunities	12

Lessor internal accounting issues	13
Sales type changes	13
Lessor portfolio funding options	14
IDC changes	14
Full service lessors	14
Leveraged leases dropped but existing leases grandfathered	14

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	
Additional resources	

INTRODUCTION

With the new lease accounting standard approved by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), the Equipment Leasing and Finance Association (ELFA) is providing this comprehensive resource for its members, lessees, and other industry participants to understand this important rule. This paper discusses:

- The important elements of the new standard; International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) version issues are covered as well for FASB-compliant companies.
- What is new and what the implications are.
- What lessees and lessors need to be doing to prepare for the transition.

For public companies the transition to the new lease accounting rules will occur in 2019 in financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. It should be noted that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) requires three years of comparative income statements and two years comparative balance sheets. Therefore, for public companies 2017 is the start for capturing data for reporting in 2019. For private companies the transition year is one year later, or 2020.

Background

ELFA has been following the lease accounting project closely from the first paper introducing the idea of changing lease accounting in 1995. The initial proposal was to completely change both lessor and lessee accounting in ways that did not reflect the substance of leases for lessees or lessors. The project gained momentum from the 2005 SEC study of off-balance sheet transactions, which cited lessee operating leases as the largest off-balance sheet obligation. The SEC recommended that lease accounting be reconsidered and operating lease obligations recognized on the balance sheet. As a result of the SEC report FASB and IASB put the project to overhaul lease accounting on their agendas as a joint project in 2006.

The preliminary views document issued for comment in 2009 and initial exposure draft in 2010 proposed to account for all lessee leases as capital leases with lessors using two new methods to account for operating and finance leases. In the 2011 exposure draft the boards continued to propose that all equipment leases be accounted for as capital leases by lessees. ELFA commented negatively along with the vast majority of other commenters (there were over 1,500 comment letters received on the project's three exposure documents).

ELFA's positions were that the FASB lease accounting standard (FAS 13) risks and rewards framework works best to reflect the substance of leases for both lessees and lessors. Lessor accounting was not "broken" and worked very well for users of financial statements. The U.S. commercial law and tax systems follow a risks and rewards methodology as well to determine if a lease is a financed purchase or a rental contract. Aligning accounting, tax and legal regimes simplifies the compliance and accounting for preparers and gives financial statement users the most decision-useful information on leases—or any financial item for that matter.

In operating leases, lessees are party to an executory contract. They do not own the physical asset and the lease obligation is not debt. The lessor owns the asset and the rent is deductible by the lessee. In a bankruptcy liquidation the asset is returned to the lessor and the future lease obligations are extinguished. Separating a lessee's lease assets that are owned vs. rented from lease liabilities that are debt vs. executory is important information for lenders. By comparison, in a finance lease for taxation (income, sales and property), the lessee is the owner and the interest expense is deductible.

ELFA understood that the goal of the lease project was to put an asset and "debt-like" liability on the balance sheet for lenders, analysts and investors as they make similar adjustments for operating leases for their particular ana-

lytical objectives. ELFA advocated that the basic risks and rewards framework should be retained and operating lease obligations should be put on the balance sheet as non-debt operating liabilities with no change to straight line rent expense accounting.

What's new? What's not?

Among the most important thing to remain under the new standard are the reasons why businesses lease and the benefits they attain. The FASB listened to the feedback, much of which is contained in the new standard, ASC 842. ASC 842 retains the basic framework of FAS 13 in the following ways:

- The scope is the same, covering only leases of property, plant and equipment.
- The definition of a lease is virtually the same for most equipment and real estate leases, with two different accounting and reporting methods.
- Lessee accounting retains the two lease model—the finance lease vs. operating lease distinction.
- The framework, or tests, for classification are virtually the same; profit and loss (P&L) lease expense remains straight line expense; and although the FASB put an operating lease liability on the balance sheet, it is NOT classified as debt. This is positive news for U.S. companies that report their financial statements using U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

In fact, the asset amounts (rental/right of use (ROU) amount) of operating leases will be *lower* than the cost of an outright purchase. An operating lease's capital asset cost is lower than a lease or cash purchase because the balance sheet presentation of an operating lease reflects only the present value of the rents due under the contract as the asset amount. As a result, it is still "partially" off-balance sheet. In addition, since the cost of an operating lease is reported as a straight line expense of the full lease payment each period, there is no front-end loaded P&L impact that comes from expensing depreciation and imputed interest costs as there is in a borrowing to make an outright asset purchase. The net result is that leasing, compared to borrowing to buy, will show a better Return on Assets (ROA), which can be the basis for bonus compensation, and ROA is a measure used by equity analysts.

There were some important changes to the definition of lease payments, initial direct costs (IDC) and sale leasebacks for both lessees and lessors. The FASB eliminated leveraged lease accounting for new leases, changed sale leaseback accounting rules where a non-bargain fixed purchase option is present, and disallowed sales type lease accounting when using third-party residual insurance. These will be examined in greater detail later in this white paper.

By comparison, the IASB has adopted a one-lease model for lessees in which all operating leases are treated as finance leases resulting in front ended lease costs, and the lease liability is classified as debt. This is not as positive for companies that have parent companies located in an IFRS country since they report their financials using IASB GAAP.

What now?

Lessees and lessors should take steps now to prepare for the new standard. Both lessees and those lessors who lease their assets (they are lessees too) should be looking at acquiring a lessee lease accounting system, installing it and testing the data well in advance of the adoption date of the new accounting rules. New internal processes and controls have to be established and documented for audit purposes. The capitalization of operating lease payments will place more scrutiny on operating leases and items that were not focused on before, such as interim rents and re-stocking fees.

For lessors it is important that they understand the rules, educate and train sales staff to be proactive in educating customers, and adjust products to take advantage of opportunities and avoid negative impacts.

ACCOUNTING DETAILS FOR LESSEES

There are two key issues for the lessee under both FASB and IASB standards. The first is capitalization of the lease and the resulting financial impact (balance sheet, P&L statement, debt covenants, credit rating and financial ratios/measures). The FASB and IASB do not agree on the accounting and reporting in very important ways, thus the lessee impacts are different as explained below. Second is what payments are capitalized, on which the FASB and IASB do agree.

Both Boards agree that in all leases the lessee acquires an ROU (an asset) and incurs a liability (the obligation to make lease payments). Where they do not agree is that in some leases the lessee also acquires an ownership interest. The FASB recognizes there are two types of leases—finance leases (formerly known as capital leases) and operating leases. Finance leases are accounted for as a debt financed purchase of the leased asset. Operating leases are accounted for as the acquisition of an ROU and the incurrence of a non-debt other operating liability. The IASB requires the lessee to account for all leases as though they are debt financed purchases of the leased asset—an unfavorable outcome as more financial ratios and measures deteriorate and debt covenants will be violated (see chart below).

The capitalization methodology is to present value the lease payments using the implicit rate in the lease (this is only known in leases where the lessee is guaranteeing the residual or a portion of the residual) or the lessee's incremental borrowing rate (this is the rate that will be used most often). Often, however, the lessee will not know that rate as it generally does not borrow fixed rate (most leases have fixed payments) medium term funds with a duration equivalent to the lease's duration (the lessor's assumed residual acts like a balloon). An acceptable equivalent to the incremental borrowing rate may be the lessee's revolver borrowing rate swapped to fixed which matches the swap term to the lease term. The present value amount is recorded as leased asset and liability.

Under the FASB model the finance lease ROU asset and operating lease ROU asset are separately reported (this allows lenders, bank regulators and tax authorities to best understand which assets are owned versus rented). The FASB model also classifies finance lease obligations as debt while operating lease obligations are reported as non-debt operating liabilities (an important distinction for lenders, credit analysts and debt covenant compliance). Under the IASB model <u>all</u> leases are accounted for as finance leases meaning all lease assets are comingled and all lease liabilities are considered debt.

Subsequent accounting for finance leases is to amortize the ROU asset straight line over the lease term, or if there is an automatic transfer of title or bargain purchase option, over the useful life of the asset. The finance lease obligation is accounted for as a loan with interest imputed using the rate used to discount the lease payments. The combination of imputed interest and asset amortization creates a front-ended lease cost pattern, which is not favorable.

The subsequent accounting for FASB operating leases is to record the lease expense as the straight line average of the lease payments. The lease liability is amortized by the difference between cash rent payments and the imputed interest. The ROU operating lease asset is amortized by the difference between the straight line rent expense and the interest amount imputed to the liability amortization. Any initial direct costs, landlord allowances and impairment are amortized straight line over the lease term as a component of rent expense. The net expense reported is a straight line expense labeled as rent expense.

Take note: Lessees will benefit from the lowest present value capitalized as it minimizes the impact on ROA that is a common measure used by investors and is also commonly a factor in customers' personal compensation. Lessees will also benefit from operating lease classification as the lease cost is straight lined and the liability is not classified as debt. All of these issues are important to their impact on financial ratios and measures.

Lease payments include contractual rents, any other fixed payments for which the lessee is obligated to pay, any bargain renewal or purchase options, variable payments based on a rate or index (set at the spot rate at commencement) and the probable amount payable under any lessee residual guarantee. Other variable payments will be accounted for on a cash basis unless they are disguised minimum payments, meaning the fixed lease payment is below market and the variable payment is virtually assured of being incurred. In that case an estimate of the disguised minimum payment must be capitalized. The FASB decided that variable payments based on a rate (LIBOR) or an index (CPI) do not have to be rebooked when the payments change unless there has been another event that causes the lease to be rebooked – this eases the compliance burden on lessees. The IASB requires rebooking whenever the variable payments change.

Take note: Due to the fact that operating leases are capitalized, lease payments will receive greater scrutiny. Items like interim rents, variable rents that are virtually assured of occurring (disguised minimum payments) and restocking fees that were overlooked in the past will be capitalized as they are lease payments.

Full service lease treatment

Any services included in a gross billed or bundled billed full service lease should be bifurcated with the non-lease portion accounted for on a cash basis and the lease portion capitalized. If the lessor does not disclose the breakdown, lessees can estimate the breakdown but the estimate has to be supported with maximum use of observable market pricing for the lease or non-lease components. The breakdown will be audited. The lessee can elect to capitalize the full amount of the bundled billed payment but that is not desirable as it will overstate the amount capitalized (fewer assets = better ROA).

Bifurcating as much service and non-leases costs as possible is more important to IASB lessees. The lower the amount of payments in the capitalization calculation, the less assets and debt reported on the balance sheet and the lower the amount of lease costs that are front ended (the bifurcated service/non-lease costs are a straight line expense.)

Take note: Bifurcating non-lease components is a transition work issue for lessees and it will be a large undertaking to transition all operating leases given the need to provide comparative statements. This is not just an issue for 2019. For existing leases lessees should ask their lessors now for the breakdown of lease and non-lease elements so they are prepared to capitalize the correct lease payment in the earliest period that has to be reported under the new standard. For public companies that will be in 2017.

Sale leasebacks with purchase options

The rules for sale leasebacks will change dramatically for any leaseback that contains a purchase option. The rules generally deny sale and operating leaseback accounting since the definition of a sale conforms to the new revenue recognition standard. The new definition of a sale includes giving up control. A purchase option allows the seller lessee to control the asset even if the purchase option is not a bargain (in this matter, ELFA disagreed, fought and lost its arguments against control ignoring risks and rewards). Therefore, if the transaction is a failed sale, both the lessee and lessor account for it as a financing, which is not logical since the lease will be presented on balance sheet as debt for the lessee and a loan receivable for the lessor. Many equipment leases are sale leasebacks merely due to the logistics in the lease origination process and previously was disregarded since current sale and operating lease GAAP is based on risks and rewards (not control) and allows non-bargain purchase options.

Lessees will have to work with their lessors to insure they structure and manage sale leasebacks to avoid failed sale leaseback accounting. One option is to sign an agency agreement with lessors as if the lessee is merely an

agent in the transaction and it is not a sale leaseback. Another option for assets that are constructed (like corporate jets) and require committed orders and down payments is for lessees to do some pre-clearance work with their auditors to understand if a right to an aircraft gives the lessee control of the aircraft. If having a right does not mean having control of the physical asset it is not a sale leaseback.

Additional lessee issues

The definition of initial direct costs (IDC) will change to eliminate inclusion of any internal costs. The implications are that internal direct costs will be recorded on the P&L when incurred, deteriorating performance.

Lessees should do a pro-forma estimate of the financial results under the new rules and look at how the changes will impact debt covenants. There should be little or no impact as the FASB made an effort to keep all of current operating lease GAAP in place except for the capitalization. They also ensured the new operating lease liability would not be considered debt. If there are any expected impacts lessees should discuss the issues with their banks to resolve them before transition.

Steps for lessees' accounting departments

Given the transition process for leases that commenced before the effective date of the new standard, lessees should be proactive and put together a project team now to deal with issues such as purchasing lease accounting software.

Lessees will need to classify existing leases appropriately. Existing capital leases are grandfathered. Operating leases are capitalized by recognizing the present value of the remaining rents as though they were newly entered leases. This means extracting data on existing leases to determine the lease payments remaining. This includes bifurcating non-lease components and calculating capitalizable variable rents and residual value guarantee payments.

The FASB has allowed some transition practical expedient reliefs but if elected a lessee has to adopt all the reliefs. It appears to be wise to accept the reliefs as they are designed to lessen the transition workload and complexity. The transition reliefs include not having to reassess items like lease classification, whether there was a sale in sale leasebacks and whether a contract contains a lease, and not having to revise IDC.

Lessees will have to develop a lease accounting process with internal controls to insure that they account for new leases at commencement and capture changes over the lease life. The accounting department will have to extract lease payment information from the lease document. The new rules will require the accounting department to interface with other departments within the lessee organization to get necessary information to account for the capitalized leases, including the following:

- The lease term, renewal options and purchase options need to be evaluated by an operations department managing the leased asset to determine if the options are reasonably certain to be exercised or not.
- The probability of payment under residual guarantees must be assessed by an operations department at commencement and at least annually thereafter.
- Any gross or bundled billed payments must be bifurcated by an operations department managing the leased asset.
- The treasury department needs to provide the booking discount rate and rates for variable payments based on a rate or index.

IASB lessees will have to account for operating leases as finance leases meaning the lease liability is debt and the lease cost is front ended. As a result the impact to financial ratios and debt limit covenants is more severe.

Impact on financials: FASB companies vs. IASB companies

As a result of the new lease accounting rules, some lessee financial ratios and measures will change—favorably or unfavorably, while others will not be affected. The following are the impacts on financial ratios for FASB companies vs IASB companies:

Key Ratios/Measures	FASB Version	IASB Version
EBITDA	no change	better – rent replace by amortization & interest
Gross Margin	no change	no change
Operating Ratio	no change	better – rent replaced by amortization
Current Ratio	worse – ROU asset not current	worse – ROU asset not current
Quick Ratio	worse – added liability	worse – additional liability
Net Worth	no change	worse – asset amortizes faster than the liability
Debt/Equity Ratio	no change	worse – additional debt + eroded equity
Return on Assets	worse – added ROU asset	worse – additional asset + front ended costs
Return on Equity	no change	worse - less equity but front ended cost

Lessee lease accounting issues with structuring ideas under FASB vs. IASB

The following chart provides an overview of issues and their recommended structuring under the new FASB and IASB lease accounting rules:

Issue	FASB	IASB
Balance sheet classification	Best if lease is an operating lease = liability <u>NOT</u> debt	Doesn't matter as all leases are treated as finance leases = liability <u>IS</u> debt
P&L	Operating lease expense is the straight line average rent	All leases have front ended costs = imputed interest + straight line asset amortization
Bifurcation	The more services and non-lease costs bifurcated in bundled billed/gross billed operating leases, the lower the rent to be capitalized.	The more services and non-lease costs bifurcated, the lower the rent to be capitalized and the lower the amount of costs front ended (non-lease elements are straight line expenses if bifur- cated).
Structuring	Best option is an operating lease with the lowest present value of rents. Residual guarantees can lower rents. Product choice and bi- furcating non-lease elements can lower rents. Adding a CPI clause while reducing rent is a lessor op- tion but it comes with risk. Short- ening the lease term is an option that comes with risk.	Best option is a lease with the lowest present value of rents. Residual guarantees can lower rents. Lessors can lower rents thru product choice and bifurcating non-lease elements. Shortening the lease term is an option that comes with risk.

The lease vs. buy decision

The new rules should not change lessee behavior. There are many business reasons why customers lease. The alternative to a lease is to borrow to buy the asset.

The business reasons why customers prefer to lease rather than borrow to purchase an asset are:

- No money down and immediate use of the leased asset vs. a loan typically requiring a down payment
- Avoid using capital to acquire a non-core business asset
- Level fixed-rate payments over a term that closely match the asset useful life
- Outsourcing service in a full service lease for more cost effective, easier management
- Transfer of asset disposal to the lessor
- Convenience: a lease is often point of sale "financing" with a simple, quick process for approval.
- Leasing provides a hedge against obsolescence.

The financial reasons why customers would not borrow to purchase an asset are:

- The customer many not qualify for a loan from a bank
- The loan interest rate will be floating and may be high
- A down payment may be required
- The term and loan payments may not fit the customer's cash management budget
- Full asset cost is on balance sheet, reducing ROA which is often the basis for compensation and investment evaluation
- The loan <u>IS</u> debt which may violate debt covenants
- The costs are front ended (imputed interest and straight line depreciation)

The following chart is a summary of the general reasons why customers lease and how those reasons fare under the new FASB rules:

Reason for Leasing	Details	Status After Proposed New Rules
Raise Capital	Additional capital source, 100% financing, fixed rate, level pay- ments, longer payment terms, avoid impacting debt limit covenants, lease cost in operating budget, less than 100% of the asset cost on balance sheet	Still a major benefit versus buying financed by a bank loan/debt especially for small and medium-sized entities and non-in- vestment grade lessees with lim- ited sources of capital
Low cost capital	Low payments/rate due to tax ben- efits, residual and lessor low cost of funds; implied equity vs. the capitalized lease amount is less than actual equity required when borrowing to buy	Still a benefit versus a bank loan and owning the asset
Tax benefits	Lessee can't use tax benefits and the lease vs. buy analysis shows lease option has lowest after tax present valued cost	Still a benefit
Manage assets/residual risk transfer	Lessee has flexibility to return asset	Still a benefit
Service	Outsource servicing of the leased assets.	Still a benefit
Convenience	Quick and easy financing process often available at point-of-sale	Still a benefit
Regulatory	Capital issues	Still a benefit as regulators should still treat ROU assets as "capital free" as they are an accounting contrivance and do not represent an asset in a bankruptcy liquida- tion
Accounting	Off balance sheet	Still a partial benefit if the present valued capitalized amount is less than the cost of the asset, should be true for high residual assets and the impact of tax benefits

Impacts and strategies for lessees: lessor product and structuring opportunities

The structuring objective of both FASB and IASB lessees will be to minimize the capitalized amount of leases. There are product options and structures that a lessor can employ to help meet the lessees' objective.

Lease product options include conditional sales, fair market value (FMV) leases, synthetic leases, and for vehicles, TRAC and split TRAC leases. The "best" financial products for lowering the amount capitalized, allowing straight line expense and avoiding the lease liability classified as debt are operating leases structured as FMV leases, synthetic leases or split TRACs. The most favorable products (assuming a U.S. customer) are conditional sales and TRACs as they are finance leases and capitalized generally at 100% of cost. For IFRS customers all products will result in the lease liability labeled as debt and front ended lease costs. The IFRS customer is still motivated to lower the present value of the rents to lower the amount of assets and liabilities capitalized to minimize the negative impacts to financial ratios and measures.

Residual guarantee products and variations may be attractive (remember a residual guarantee may eliminate tax benefits to the lessor) given that only the probable payment (not the full amount of the guarantee) under the residual guarantee is capitalized. At commencement the probable payment under the guarantee should be zero as the residual guarantee is generally structured with the strike price set at the expected future value—it is not "in the money." A residual guarantee allows the lessor to offer a lower rent by assuming a higher residual without the asset risk, as the lessee guarantees the residual (there is credit risk; that is, can the lessee pay the guarantee if needed?).

The following table of capitalized values for different lease structures shows that the split TRAC and synthetic leases offer the lowest capitalized values. The high residual assets offer lower capitalized values than low residual assets. Note that the PC lease with an interim rent would not be classified as an operating lease as the interim rent will be capitalized causing the present value to exceed 90% of the asset cost. These values are not purported to represent current market pricing.

Lease Type	Sample Terms	Estimated Capitalized Value @ 6% disc rate
PC lease	36 mos, 2.73% pmt, FMV with 15 day interim rent	91% of cost *
Auto fleet lease	12 mos, 2.5% pmt, 76% RVG (split TRAC)	29% of cost
Construction/Ag equip lease	36 mos, 1.6% pmt, FMV, 50% residual	52% of cost
Cat Scanner lease	60 mos, 1.5% pmt, FMV, 20% residual	77% of cost
Truck lease	84 mos, 1.24% pmt, FMV 23% resid	85% of cost
Corp jet lease	120 mos, 0.65% pmt, FMV	59% of cost
RE synthetic lease	60 mos, 0.5% pmt, 85% RVG	26% of cost

LESSOR/CUSTOMER INTERFACE

Lessors should understand the new rules as they impact customers and product offerings. There has been a great deal of misinformation being communicated about the new rules in articles and hearsay, but the rules will not be as detrimental as first thought, and there are actually some opportunities.

The lessor sales staff will require training and preparation to better meet their customers' needs, and potentially differentiate themselves in the marketplace:

- They have to understand the new rules and the implications.
- They have to be prepared in order to address customers' questions and objections.
- Their marketing plans have to be adjusted for product changes.
- Marketing materials have to be updated.

Customers should be made aware that both the FASB and IASB agreed to simplify the project by eliminating the need to estimate likely renewals and variable rents. Further, the FASB listened to feedback and broke from the single lease (capital lease accounting for all lease) model and retained the GAAP two-lease model where operating leases would be capitalized but treated differently than finance leases. Operating leases are accounted for virtually the same as under current GAAP for P&L cost purposes; that is, the cost pattern would remain as the straight line average rent. Additionally the FASB decided that the capitalized operating lease liability is not to be classified as debt—rather it will be an "other" operating liability. The resulting impact is minimal impact on debt covenants, and in fact, no impact on debt limit covenants. *These changes made by the FASB present the financial impact of operating leases more closely to the true economics of the transaction and also eliminate most of the negative aspects of the new rules.* The amount capitalized will be less than the equipment cost and the cost is straight lined so there will still be an accounting benefit to leasing over borrowing to buy. The greater the residual assumed and the higher the tax benefits, the lower the capitalized amount. The issue for lessors is to ensure that their customers understand all of this.

Lessors should review their lease structures against the proposed rules to see which products work best and where changes should be made. Lessors should also look at the impact on asset types and markets so that they focus on the areas where the prospects are best given the details of the new rules. There are positive and negative nuances in the new rules that need to be understood.

Lessor internal accounting issues

The good news for lessor accounting is the FASB decided that there were no major deficiencies in lessor accounting so they left most of it in place. The classification of leases as either operating or finance leases remains the same. The revenue accounting models for both also remain the same so there will be no major systems changes required.

The need for residual value insurance (RVI) to convert operating leases to finance leases will remain a useful tool for financial institutions as the income pattern is better. More importantly finance lease accounting avoids depreciation of operating lease assets that negatively impact operating efficiency ratios which investors focus on.

Sales type changes

The definition of a sales type lease will change only where third party residual insurance was needed to convert the lease from an operating lease. The reason for this change is to conform to the new revenue recognition rules that define a sale as being based on a transaction between two parties (third party involvement cannot create the sale).

If the operating lease is not converted to a finance lease, the gross profit is straight lined over the lease term. If residual insurance is purchased to convert the lease to a finance lease the gross profit is included in the revenue amortization and implicit rate calculations so that the gross profit is recognized at a constant rate versus the declining lessor investment—just like any other finance lease. The impact here is for those manufacturers and dealers who do need to use RVI. Their revenue pattern will suffer in the short run although it is only a timing difference; once they reach a level state where old leases are replacing new leases the negative impact will disappear.

An alternative strategy to accelerate gross profit recognition is to use a third party vendor lessor to buy the leases which will give the seller sale treatment although there is a tradeoff of loss of control of the customer and loss of finance revenue.

Lessor portfolio funding options

If a lessor acquires its portfolio of leased assets by borrowing and buying, there is no change from current GAAP, that is, the lessor records the asset at cost (100%) and the loan that finances the purchase as debt. The lessor accounts for the asset it leases out as a finance lease or operating lease, and records interest expense on the loan.

If the lessor decides to execute a sale leaseback of those purchased assets and includes a purchase option in the leaseback as often occurs, the new rules would <u>not</u> consider that a sale, so the sales proceeds and leaseback are recorded as debt (a confusing and bad outcome). The end user leases would be recorded as either operating or finance leases. Under current GAAP many lessors use sale leasebacks with early buyout options (EBO) or purchase options to remove their portfolio of operating lease assets from their books—that will not be the case under the new rules without careful structuring. It would still be advantageous to do a sale leaseback with a fixed price purchase option if structured so that it qualifies as a sale (lessors need to be considered an agent arranging the sale leaseback). The benefits are the liability is not debt and the value of the asset is likely to be lower as it would be the ROU asset resulting from capitalizing the operating leaseback.

IDC changes

The definition of IDC will change to include only external incremental direct costs. Many lessors allocate internal initial direct costs to be included in IDC as allowed under the previous definition. The financial impact to this change is an acceleration of operating costs (it is a timing difference so it will level off when the new leases are replacing old leases at an even pace). The operational impact is that the definition of loan IDC will remain unchanged so lessors who are also lenders will have two different IDC processes.

Full service lessors

Full service lessors will have to bifurcate their payments into lease and non-lease components in the P&L. This should not be too great an issue as it just puts the service revenue on a different line. The more problematic issue is that lessees will ask for a breakdown of payment components for both new leases and all existing leases that will be in effect on the transition date. Lessors may view this as proprietary pricing information. If they refuse to provide the information it may be difficult for lessees to find observable market pricing for the lease and service components. Lessees can use reasonable estimates but it remains to be seen as to how the auditors will deal with the issue if market information is not available.

The issue of divulging the breakdown of lease and non-lease components may turn out to be a competitive issue. If some lessors provide the breakdown it may force other lessors to do so as lessees will likely demand it.

Leveraged leases dropped but existing leases grandfathered

The leveraged lease rules for new leases have been dropped from the rules. The FASB did allow existing leveraged leases at the transition date to be grandfathered. This is an opportunity to continue to do leveraged leases as the rules will allow them to continue to be accounted for as leveraged leases even after they are traded.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Lessors who best prepare and understand the new lease accounting rules and implications will be in a better competitive position and able to provide value-added consultative selling to their customers.

U.S. lessees will look to continue to get operating lease treatment, to minimize lease payments and to bifurcate non-lease elements—all of which contribute to more advantageous financial presentation and results. Structures with lessee residual guarantees can produce the lowest capitalized amounts. IASB lessees will also be motivated to minimize lease payments and bifurcate non-lease payments from rents, while residual guarantee structures can help lower rents to be capitalized.

The new standard will not impact the ability of companies to acquire productive equipment to grow their businesses or to enjoy the benefits of financing. There are many reasons to lease equipment, and the primary reasons will remain intact under the new rules, from maintaining cash flow, to preserving capital, to obtaining flexible financial solutions, to avoiding obsolescence. Overall the leasing and finance industry should remain strong.

Additional resources

ELFA has developed additional resources to assist lessors and lessees in the transition to the new lease accounting rules. For bylined articles, fact sheets, an FAQ, infographic and other content, please visit www.EquipmentFinanceAdvantage.org/newLAR.cfm.

To learn more about this topic, you may also visit ELFA's Lease Accounting webpage at www.elfaonline.org/industry-topics/lease-accounting



Equipment Leasing and Finance Association 1825 K Street NW, Suite 900 Washington, DC 20006 ELFA Headquarters: 202-238-3400 www.elfaonline.org

